
BOW VALLEY REGIONAL TRANSIT SERVICES COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

BVRTSC CUSTOMER SERVICE CENTRE – IAN MACKIE BOARD ROOM 
(221 BEAVER ST. BANFF) 

 
AGENDA 

February 10, 2016: 12:30pm – 2:30pm 

 

1. Call to Order 
 

 

2. Approval of the Agenda 
 

 
3. Approval of the January 13, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes (attached) 

 
 

4. Old Business (including Standing Items) 
a) CAO’s Monthly Report – February, 2015  
b) Bring Forward List of Pending Items (attached). 
c) Transit Service Monthly Statistics (attached). 

d) Feedback from Board on Statistics Package. 
 

 
 

5. New Business 
a) Request from Bow Valley Syrian Refugee Project 
b) 4th Quarter Financial Results 
c) GreenTrip #3 Discussion 
d) Strategic Planning Preliminary Date Discussion 
e) Update on Banff Long Term Transportation Plan – Adrian Field 

 
6. Adjournment 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 
 

Previous Meeting Minutes 



BOW VALLEY REGIONAL TRANSIT SERVICES COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
BVRTSC CUSTOMER SERVICE CENTRE – IAN MACKIE BOARD ROOM 

(221 BEAVER ST. BANFF) 
 

MINUTES 
January 13, 2016: 2:00pm – 4:00pm 

 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
Sean Krausert, Town of Canmore – Chair 
Davina Bernard, ID#9 – Vice Chair 
Joanna McCallum, Town of Canmore 
Karen Sorensen, Town of Banff  
Corrie DiManno, Town of Banff 
Dave Schebek, ID#9 
 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 
 
BOARD ADMINISTRATION PRESENT  
Martin Bean, Chief Administrative Officer 
Steve Nelson, Manager of Operations/Meeting Recorder 
 
ADMINISTRATION PRESENT 
Adrian Field, Town of Banff 
Alex Kolesch, Parks Canada (Phoned In) 
Jacob Johnson, Town of Canmore 
Ethan Gorner, ID#9 

ADMINISTRATION ABSENT 

 

1. Call to Order 
 
Sean Krausert called the meeting to order at 2:02 PM. 

 
 

2. Approval of the Agenda 
 
BVRTSC16-01 Sean Krausert moves approval of the agenda as circulated. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 
1 

 



3. Approval of the December 9,  2015 Regular Meeting Minutes (attached) 
 
BVRTSC16-02 Sean Krausert moves approval of the minutes as circulated. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

4. Old Business (including Standing Items) 
 

a) CAO’s Monthly Report – January, 2015  
 
Questions were fielded by BVRTSC Administration with respect to Canmore local buses; update re 
discussions about Lake Louise (awaiting information from Parks); the benchmarking initiative; and 
the operational safety and maintenance audit (will take place February 9 – 10).   
 

b) Bring Forward List of Pending Items (attached). 
 
 

c) Transit Service Monthly Statistics (attached). 
 
Some suggestions made that year to year total comparisons with respect to statistics are helpful as 
compared to month to month.  A request was had that in a future meeting the Board provide 
feedback as to what is helpful in the statistics and what is not. 

 
5. New Business 

 
a) Approval of Revised Advertising Policy (MA1) 

 
BVRTSC16-03 Sean Krausert moves adoption of the revised advertising policy as presented. 
 

BVRTSC16-03a Davina Bernard moves an amendment to s. 5.1 to add “Subject to the Board’s 
prior approval,” at the start of the second sentence.    

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
BVRTSC16-03b Sean Krausert moves an amendment to s. 6.1 to add “…in the sole discretion of 
BVRTSC” after “advertising that”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

BVRTSC16-03 Sean Krausert moves adoption of the revised advertising policy as amended. 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
b) Ratification of bus purchase motion 

 
Since the last Board meeting a potentially advantageous opportunity arose to purchase two Nova 
buses, and given the time sensitive nature of it, the Chair initiated the extraordinary measure of 
having an email vote on the following motion, which (if approved) would be ratified at the next 
board meeting.   

 
 Accordingly, the following motion was passed unanimously by email in the days immediately 

following December 15, 2015: 

2 
 



 
 “That, provided that funding has been approved by Town of Banff (Elk bus replacement and 

regional additional bus) and Town of Canmore (regional additional bus) respectively, 
Administration is authorized to proceed with further investigation into the purchase of up to two 
Nova buses as per the attached report, and to enter into purchase agreements for these buses 
without having gone through the RFP process set out in the Financial Policy if determined by 
Administration that the buses are suitable for BVRTSC purposes.”   

 
 In support of the motion, it was noted: 

• the Board is at liberty to not follow the Financial Policy at its discretion; and 
• the Nova bus matches what is already on the regional route and, I believe, has been 

discussed with Banff and is acceptable to them.   
 
BVRTSC16-04 Sean Krausert moved ratification of the email motion as described herein. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

NOTE – The CAO advised that after further investigating the potential purchase as approved by the 
above motions, it was determined that the specifications of the buses would not match BVRTSC 
requirements and so the purchase was not pursued further. 
 

c) 2014 Financial Reconciliation Approval 
 
BVRTSC16-05 Sean Krausert moved to receive the operating financial reconciliation from 2014 for 
information. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

d) New Year Check-In re Governance, Procedures, etc. 
 
A general discussion was had that included: 

• all commission members reminded that while sitting at the BVRTSC table they have their 
‘board hats on’ as opposed to their municipal hats on. 

• it is important that we have targets against which we get reporting on performance. Eg. Net 
cost per service hour? 

• strategic planning will take place in 2016 for next three year period. 
• for next meeting, add an “Old Business” item 4(d) Feedback to Admin on statistics provided 

(i.e. what the Board would like to see). 
• agenda items are welcome from board members, as well as from municipal admin members 

provided such goes board members first.  Items must be received by the Chair or CAO by first 
thing on the Monday of the week before the board meeting. 

• a request to  include a “Lake Louise update” as part of CAO update going forward.  
 

6. Adjournment 
 
BVRTSC16-06 Sean Krausert moved to adjourn the meeting at 2:55 PM. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 

3 
 



 

 

 

 
 

CAO Report 



 

1 

 

 

CAO Report – February 2016 

 

The current items to report on are: 

 

 Canmore Local Service 

 

o Bus purchase has been made with one bus scheduled to arrive in early June and 

the second bus to arrive in early Fall.  The first bus to arrive will act as a backup 

for Regional service and allow for the doubling to proceed without having to lease 

a bus. 

o An initial site visit has occurred and a plan for the use of the old waste transfer 

facility is currently being developed with an initial report of costs and timelines 

being delivered by mid-February.  Securing availability and designation of this site 

for bus storage is currently being worked on by the Town of Canmore. 

o TOC is currently working on the submission for design for the buses and layout of 

the wrap to ensure that timelines are met. 

 

 Canmore/Banff (CB) Regional Enhancements: 

 

o With the confirmation of a Vicinity bus delivery for early June, we are able to 

commit to a start date for CB Regional service enhancements to begin as of 

Monday May 2, 2016. 

o Currently ongoing are plans for brochure production and subsequent distribution, 

signage changes and installation as well as operational requirements including 

driver hiring and training. 

o New stop planning and negotiations with Parks Canada on the Hawk avenue stop 

are currently underway with agreement having been reached on a temporary land 

lease. 

o Advertising options are being finalized over the next month and are intended to 

include radio, newspaper, social media and utilizing the TOB and TOC resources. 

 



 

2 

 

 Fleet: 

 

o RFP for the procurement of two 40 foot transit buses has now closed with the bid 

scoring currently being finalized with the assistance of maintenance subject 

matter experts and decision forthcoming.   

o The next step in the process will be the pre-production meeting whereby the 

details specifications are finalized.  This will be held in conjunction with the Town 

of Banff Fleet Supervisor to ensure we are ordering buses that match our current 

fleet specifications and meet any additional needs we have or see forthcoming. 

 

 Partner Programs: 

 

o Existing hotel partner contracts are currently in the final stages of being renewed.  

All partners have signed other than Parks Canada, who are expected to sign 

imminently. 

o Banff Caribou Properties will be adding the Moose Hotel and Suites to their transit 

portfolio later this spring. 

 

 Lake Louise Service: 

 

o Initial information has been discussed with Parks Canada on the intended routing 

and stop locations.  

o Report is currently being compiled for discussion over the next few weeks with 

Parks Canada to determine budget and operational requirements. 

o A preliminary budget is currently being developed with an estimate of the number 

of buses required and both operating and capital costs.   

 

 

 

 Operations: 

  

o Security Cameras: 

 As a follow up to last month’s update on security cameras, a vendor has 

been decided on after receiving 3 quotes.  The vendor is Seon, a Canadian 

supplier who is highly recommended by a number of transit agencies.  It is 

intended to have the cameras installed in the fleet over the next few 

months.   



 

3 

 

 The camera system chosen will have Wi-Fi capability for downloading and 

will enabling visibility and reconstruction of any events, either inside or 

outside of the bus.  Each bus will have 7 cameras, allowing for multi-

directional coverage of all areas.  Video replay will have restricted access 

and will allow for blanking out of faces to ensure privacy where required. 

 Security camera policies are being written with input from various transit 

agencies that have camera systems currently in place. 

 The camera system for the fleet will be under the 2016 budgeted amount 

of $50,000. 

 

o Driver evaluations have been completed on all drivers currently employed.  

These driver evaluations are being completed on an annual basis with informal 

assessments being conducted on an ongoing basis. 

 

o An engine is currently being ordered for Wolf bus on the recommendation of 

TOB Fleet Supervisor.  The intent is to have it installed in 2016 – we currently 

have $45,000 in 2016 allocated for this engine however the quotes being 

received on hybrid bus engines are currently at approximately $58,000.   

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

Bring Forward List 



BRING FORWARD LIST OF ITEMS PENDING (as of February 4, 2016)  

ITEM Date 
Initiated 

Pending 
Date 

Comments: 

BVRTSC15-060 Sean Krausert moves to create and 
institute a one year trial of Youth passes on the 
regional service only at a discount from the full 
adult fare on 10-pack and 30 day passes as 
described in the report.   
 

August 
2015 

August 
2016 

 

BVRTSC15-075 Sean Krausert moves that, subject 
to the approval of both Banff and Canmore 
Councils as well as approval from the Province of 
Alberta for use of GreenTRIP funding currently 
allocated to cutaway replacement, administration 
proceed with purchasing of an extra 40 foot bus to 
be used on the Regional service and function as a 
spare. (Original motion amended by BVRTSC15-95) 
 

October 
2015 

TBD Both Banff and Canmore 
Councils have approved, 
and so upon GreenTRIP 
approval this matter will 
move towards 
implementation. 
 
BVRTSC15-95 Sean Krausert 
moves to amend motion 
BVRTSC 15-075 by replacing 
“30 foot bus” with “40 foot 
bus”. 
 

 

1 
 



Bow Valley Regional Transit Services Commission 
 

 
 

Banff Local Service 
Ridership and Revenue Statistics 

 

2015 Highlights 

10% overall increase in ridership in 2015 

 

0% increase in revenues 

 

Potential reasons for flat line revenues: 
 

14K Free transit trips for campground users in summer of 2015 

 

   36K increase in hotel program trips. 



Month 2012 2013 2014 2015 2014 Running Total 2015 Running Total Running Total Difference 2014 to 2015 Monthly Difference 2014 to 2015 Monthly % Difference

January 37,730 36,302 39,021 42,163 39,021 42,163 3,142 3,142 8.1%

February 41,031 39,738 39,353 41,001 78,374 83,164 4,790 1,648 4.2%

March 44,826 45,039 41,887 46,422 120,261 129,586 9,325 4,535 10.8%

April 38,652 36,510 36,565 37,285 156,826 166,871 10,045 720 2.0%

May 47,945 46,739 48,180 52,774 205,006 219,645 14,639 4,594 9.5%

June 47,447 50,267 56,419 64,871 261,425 284,517 23,092 8,452 15.0%

July 60,356 62,089 70,456 79,846 331,881 364,363 32,481 9,389 13.3%

August 64,441 63,224 66,224 82,031 398,105 446,394 48,289 15,807 23.9%

September 48,767 49,512 53,483 60,611 451,588 507,005 55,417 7,129 13.3%

October 36,818 34,244 35,835 35,623 487,423 542,628 55,205 -212 -0.6%

November 33,359 30,911 32,820 34,476 520,243 577,104 56,861 1,656 5.0%

December 42,073 41,403 46,194 45,825 566,437 622,929 56,491 -370

Grand Total: 543445 535,978 566,437 622,929 566,437 622,929 56,491 10.0%
End of Year Comparison to 2013

Banff Local Ridership/Revenue Analysis

Ridership

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

R
ID

E
R

SH
IP

MONTH

Banff Local Ridership By Month 

2012 2013 2014 2015






























	February 10, 2016 Agenda.docx
	BOW VALLEY REGIONAL TRANSIT SERVICES COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

	Previous Meeting Minutes Title Sheet.docx
	January 13 2016 DRAFT Minutes (SK Revised).pdf
	BOW VALLEY REGIONAL TRANSIT SERVICES COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

	CAO Report Title Sheet.docx
	CAO Report February 2016.docx
	Bring Forward List Title Sheet.docx
	Bring Forward List of Pending Items February 2016 (Chair Revised).pdf
	BanffLocalTitleSheet.docx



